


Dear

It is no secret that 2008 represent

the banking industry The real

economic downturn led to the .ks in 2008

including the $300 billion Washk ual the largest

failure in history Financial services industry stalwarts

Wachovia Bear Stearns and Merrill Lynch were

other institutions while Lel

existence The two largest

enterprises GSEs Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac were placed

in conservatorship by the federal government The Federal

Reserve cut interest rates an unprecedented number of times in

2008 resulting in significant contraction in many banks net

interest margin These significant market events and economic

forces have taken their toll on banks performances and their

stock prices including ours

Despite the challenges present in our industry the banking

sector remains highly capitalized and well prepared to endure

the current economic climate As of December 2008 equity

capital in the industry exceeded $1.3 trillion with an additional

$173 biffion held in reserve as safeguard against possible

losses In fact 97.ó% of insured financial institutions

including CommunitySouth are well capitalized the highest

regulatory capital standard We are pleased to report that as of

December 31 2008 the Banks total risk-based capital Tier

risk-based capital and leverage ratios of 10.18% 8.92% and

7.98% respectively all exceed well capitalized standards

In conjunction with the difficulties present in the banking

industry 2008 was year marked by many challenges at

CommunitySouth For the first time since our inaugural year

we reported loss In the second quarter of 2008 we placed an

additional $2.5 miffion into the allowance for loan losses for

potential loan losses in residential development on Lake

Keowee in Seneca South Carolina Subsequently in the fourth

quarter of 2008 we charged off $3.0 miffion of the total $4.9

million outstanding on these loans We continue to investigate

whether fraud was involved in these loans and have filed

notice of loss under our Financial Institution Bond We do

believe these losses to be an isolated event and not indicative

of the overall quality of our loan portfolio However the rest
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Given current industry and market conditions significant asset

growth is not an objective for 2009 In fact one of our

focused objectives for 2009 is to continue to manage our

balance sheet in order to enhance our total risk-based capital

percentage Other 2009 objectives include reduce portfolio

concentration of construction and land development loans

enhance credit risk management practices tightly manage

overhead expense increase non-interest income through our

mortgage and services divisions improve margins and lower

our overall funding costs by growing core deposits

This past year was disappointing and challenging year for all

financial institutions including CommunitySouth especially

considering our strong historical performance However we

believe we are well positioned to manage through this

economic downturn and are poised to take advantage of

opportunities when economic conditions improve

Our management team employees and Board of Directors

greatly appreciate your
continued loyalty and support as we

work toward our vision of being The Financial Services Provider

of Choice in the Markets Ue Serve

Sincerely

Daniel Youngblood

Chairman of the Board

Allan Ducker III

Chief Executive Officer



Selected Financial Data

The following selected financial data for the
years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 was derived from the consolidated

financial statements and other data of CommunitySouth Financial Corporation and its subsidiary CommunitySouth Bank

and Trust the Bank collectively the Company The selected financial data should be read in conjunction with the

consolidated financial statements of the Company including the accompanying notes included elsewhere herein

On January 16 2007 the Company effected 5-for-4 stock split in the form of stock dividend for shareholders of record as

of December 15 2006

Dollars in thousands except per share data 2008 2007

Income Statement Data

Interest income loans 20163 21403
Interest income investments 2547 1813

Total interest income 22710 23216
Interest expense deposits 12.580 13.069
Net interest income 10130 10147

Provision for loan losses 7168 1.188
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 2962 8959
Non-interest income 1392 1575

Non-interest expense 9510 8184
Income loss before income taxes 5156 2350
Income tax expense benefit 1806 782
Net income loss 3350 1568

Balance Sheet Data

Total assets 387816 377867

Earning assets 374939 361890
Investment securities available for sale 47602 24844
Other investments 1805 447

Loans 320907 302934
Allowance for loan losses 8088 4214
Deposits 296643 327664
Shareholders equity 28528 31471

Per-Share Data

Net income loss basic 0.71 0.33

Net income Iossdiluted 0.71 0.31

Book value 6.07 6.70

Return on Equity and Assets

Return on average assets 0.87% 0.50%

Return on average equity lO.91% 5.12%

Average equity to average assets ratio 7.99% 9.76%

Marketable securities are stated at fair value

Non-marketable securities are stated at cost

Loans are stated at gross amounts before allowance for loan losses



Forward Looking Statements

This report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the securities laws All statements that are not

historical facts are forward-looking statements You can identify these forward-looking statements through our use of

words such as may will expect anticipate believe intend estimate project continue or other similar

words Forward-looking statements include but are not limited to statements regarding our future business prospects

revenues working capital liquidity capital needs interest costs income business operations and proposed services

These forward-looking statements are based on current expectations estimates and projections about our industry

managements beliefs and assumptions made by management Such information includes without limitation discussions as

to estimates expectations beliefs plans strategies and objectives concerning our future financial and operating

performance These statements are not guarantees of future performance and are subject to risks uncertainties and

assumptions that are difficult to predict particularly in light of the fact that we are new company with limited operating

history Therefore actual results may differ materially from those expressed or forecasted in such forward-looking

statements The risks and uncertainties include but are not limited to

our rapid growth to date and short operating history

significant increases in competitive pressure in the banking and financial services industries

changes in the interest rate environment which could reduce anticipated or actual margins

changes in political conditions or the legislative or regulatory environment

general economic conditions either nationally or regionally and especially in our primary service area becoming

less favorable than expected resulting in among other things deterioration in credit quality

changes occurring in business conditions and inflation

changes in technology

changes in monetary and tax policies

the lack of seasoning of our loan portfolio especially given our rapid loan growth

the level of allowance for loan losses

the rate of delinquencies and amounts of charge-offs

adverse changes in asset quality and resulting credit risk-related losses and expenses

loss of consumer confidence and economic disruptions resulting from terrorist activities

changes in the securities markets and

other risks and uncertainties detailed from time to time in our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission

We undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements whether as result of new

information future events or otherwise In light of these risks uncertainties and assumptions the forward-looking events

discussed in this report may not occur

copy of the our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 2008 as filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission which contains discussion of certain risks and uncertainties that could affect our forward-looking

statements will be sent to any shareholder without charge upon written request to CommunitySouth Financial Corporation

Attn John Hobbs ChiefFinancial Officer 6602 Calhoun Memorial Highway Easley South Carolina 29640

Market for Common Stock and Dividends

Since March 15 2006 our common stock has been quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board under the symbol CBSO
Quotations on the OTC Bulletin Board reflect inter-dealer prices without retail mark-up mark-down or commissions and

may not represent actual transactions Transactions of our common stock did not begin to occur on the OTC Bulletin Board

until March 16 2006

The following is summary of the high and low bid prices for our common stock reported by the OTC Bulletin

Board for the periods indicated the bids prices have been adjusted for all stock splits

2008 High Low
Fourth Quarter 5.50 1.75

Third Quarter 7.00 2.53

Second Quarter 9.00 5.50

First Quarter 10.00 7.30



2007 Hi2h Low

Fourth Quarter 11.40 8.55

Third Quarter 13.50 11.00

Second Quarter 15.90 12.75

First Quarter 18.00 13.68

As of December 31 2008 there were 4698697 shares of common stock outstanding held by approximately 907

shareholders of record

We have not declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock since our inception For the foreseeable

future we do not intend to declare cash dividends We intend to retain earnings to grow our business and strengthen our

capital base Our ability to pay dividends depends on the ability of our subsidiary CommunitySouth Bank and Trust to pay

dividends to us As South Carolina state bank CommunitySouth Bank and Trust may only pay dividends out of its net

profits after deducting expenses including losses and bad debts In addition the Bank is prohibited from declaring

dividend on its shares of common stock unless its surplus equals or exceeds its stated capital At December 2008 the

Bank had deficit of $872916



COMMUNITYSOUTH FINANCIAL CORPORATION
MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Basis of Presentation

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Companys Consolidated Financial Statements and the

Notes thereto and the other financial data included elsewhere in this Annual Report The financial information provided
below has been rounded in order to simplify its presentation However the ratios and percentages provided below are
calculated using the detailed financial information contained in the Consolidated Financial Statements the Notes thereto and
the other financial data included elsewhere in this Annual Report

General

CommunitySouth Financial Corporation is bank holding company headquartered in Easley South Carolina Its subsidiary

CommunitySouth Bank and Trust opened for business on January 18 2005 The principal business activity of the Bank is to

provide banking services to domestic markets principally in the upstate of South Carolina The deposits of the Bank are

insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation the FDIC The Company completed an initial public offering of its

common stock in which it sold total of 4681069 shares at $6.40 per share as adjusted for all previous stock splits
Proceeds of the offering were used to pay organizational costs and provide the initial capital for the Bank

Overview

The following discussion describes our results of operations for the
years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 and also

analyzes our financial condition as of December 31 2008 and 2007 We received approvals from the FDIC the Federal

Reserve Board FRB and the State Board of Financial Institutions during January 2005 and commenced business on

January 18 2005

Like most community banks we derive most of our income from interest we receive on our loans and investments Our

primary source of funds for making these loans and investments is our deposits on which we pay interest Consequently one
of the key measures of our success is our amount of net interest income or the difference between the income on our

interest-earning assets such as loans and investments and the expense on our interest-bearing liabilities such as deposits
Another key measure is the spread between the yield we earn on these interest-earning assets and the rate we pay on our

interest-bearing liabilities

Of course there are risks inherent in all loans so we maintain an allowance for loan losses to absorb probable losses on

existing loans that may become uncollectible We establish and maintain this allowance by charging provision for loan

losses against our operating earnings We have included detailed discussion of this process in the following section

In addition to earning interest on our loans and investments we earn income through fees and other
expenses we charge to

our customers We describe the various components of this non-interest income as well as our non-interest expense in the

discussion below

Recent Legislative and Regulatory Initiatives to Address Financial and Economic Crises

The Congress Treasury Department and the federal banking regulators including the FDIC have taken broad action since

early September 2008 to address volatility in the U.S banking system

In October 2008 the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 EESA was enacted The EESA authorizes the

Treasury Department to purchase from financial institutions and their holding companies up to $700 billion in mortgage
loans mortgage-related securities and certain other financial instruments including debt and equity securities issued by
financial institutions and their holding companies in troubled asset relief program TARP The

purpose of TARP is to

restore confidence and stability to the U.S banking system and to encourage financial institutions to increase their lending to

customers and to each other The Treasury Department has allocated $250 billion towards the TARP Capital Purchase

Program CPP Under the CPP the Treasury Department will purchase debt or equity securities from participating
institutions The TARP also will include direct purchases or guarantees of troubled assets of financial institutions

Participants in the CPP are subject to executive compensation limits and are encouraged to expand their lending and

mortgage loan modifications



EESA also increased FDIC deposit insurance on most accounts from $100000 to $250000 This increase is in place until

the end of 2009 and is not covered by deposit insurance premiums paid by the banking industry

Following systemic risk determination the FDIC established the Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program TLGP on
October 14 2008 The TLGP includes the Transaction Account Guarantee Program TAGP which provides unlimited

deposit insurance coverage through December 31 2009 for noninterest-bearing transaction accounts typically business

checking accounts and certain funds swept into noninterest-bearing savings accounts Institutions participating in the TLGP
pay 10 basis points fee annualized on the balance of each covered account in excess of $250000 while the extra deposit

insurance is in place The TLGP also includes the Debt Guarantee Program DGP under which the FDIC guarantees
certain senior unsecured debt of FDIC-insured institutions and their holding companies The unsecured debt must be issued

on or after October 14 2008 and not later than June 30 2009 and the guarantee is effective through the earlier of the

maturity date or June 30 2012 The DGP coverage limit is generally 125% of the eligible entitys eligible debt outstanding

on September 30 2008 and scheduled to mature on or before June 30 2009 or for certain insured institutions 2% of their

liabilities as of September 30 2008 Depending on the term of the debt maturity the nonrefundable DGP fee ranges from 50

to 100 basis points annualized for covered debt outstanding until the earlier of maturity or June 30 2012 The TAGP and

DGP are in effect for all eligible entities unless the entity opted out on or before December 2008 CommunitySouth opted

to participate in both programs

On February 17 2009 President Obama signed into law The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 ARRA
more commonly known as the economic stimulus or economic recovery package ARRA includes wide variety of

programs intended to stimulate the economy and provide for extensive infrastructure energy health and education needs
In addition ARRA imposes certain new executive compensation and corporate expenditure limits on all current and future

TARP recipients that are in addition to those previously announced by the U.S Treasury until the institution has repaid the

Treasury Department which is now permitted under ARRA without penalty and without the need to raise new capital

subject to the Treasury Departments consultation with the recipients appropriate regulatory agency

Further regulatory actions may arise as the Federal government continues to attempt to address the economic situation

Results of Operations

Results of operations are only presented for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007

Net interest income decreased $16628 or 0.16% to $10.13 million in 2008 down from $10.15 million in 2007 The primary

component of interest income in 2008 was interest on loans including fees of $20.2 million as compared to $21.4 million in

2007 The decrease in net interest income was due primarily to decrease in rates translating into lower loan yields

The Companys net interest spreads were 2.27% and 2.75% in 2008 and 2007 respectively The Companys net interest

margins were 2.74% and 3.3 8% in 2008 and 2007 respectively This decline of 64 basis points in the net interest margin

was due the decline in market rates Yields on average earning assets decreased from 7.74% in 2007 to 6.13% in 2008 Rates

on average interest bearing liabilities decreased from 4.99% in 2007 to 3.86% in 2008 These changes in yields and rates

resulted in net decrease in net interest spread of 48 basis points Average shareholder equity was 9.5% of average interest

bearing liabilities in 2008 and 11.7% of average interest bearing liabilities in 2007

The provision for loan losses was $7.2 million in 2008 compared to $1.2 million in 2007 The charges to the provision were

to maintain the allowance for loan losses at level sufficient to cover estimated losses inherent in the loan portfolio given

the current economic downturn which has affected the entire banking industry CommunitySouth like many community
banks has significant amount of loans that directly or indirectly rely on the home building industry which has also

experienced an extremely turbulent year

Non-interest income decreased $182428 or 11.59% to $1.4 million in 2008 down from non-interest income of$l.6 million

in 2007 The decrease is attributable to the $528582 decrease or 52.96% in mortgage loan origination fees which was

$469529 for the year ended December 31 2008 The decrease is due to our decreased volume in mortgage loan originations

and departmental restructuring Income from bank-owned life insurance was $210525 in 2008 slight decline from income

of $222048 in 2007 Service charges on deposit accounts increased $173752 or 117.1% to $322090 in 2008 as compared
to service charges on deposit accounts of $148338 in 2007 due to the increased volume in deposit accounts



Non-interest expense increased $1.3 million or 16.2% to $9.5 million in 2008 compared to non-interest expense of $8.2

million in 2007 Non-interest expense increased in most categories as result of our continued growth Salaries and

employee benefits increased $491843 to $4.8 million for the year ended December 31 2008 This increase is attributable to

normal pay increases hiring of additional staff to meet the needs associated with our growth The Companys efficiency ratio

was 82.5% in 2008 compared to 69.8% in 2007 The efficiency ratio is defined as non-interest expense divided by the sum of

net interest income and non-interest income net of gains and losses on sales of assets The deterioration in our efficiency

ratio is primarily attributable to the increased expenses described above which we incurred to position our Bank for

anticipated growth

The Companys net loss was $3.4 million in 2008 compared to net income of $1.6 million in 2007 Return on average assets

during 2008 was -0.87% compared to return of 0.50% in 2007 Net loss in 2008 was after an income tax benefit of $1.8

million and net income in 2007 was after an income tax expense of $781656 The income tax expenses for 2008 and 2007

resulted in effective tax rates of 35.0% and 33.3% respectively See Notes and 12 to the consolidated financial statements

for additional information about income taxes

Net Interest Income

General The largest component of the Companys net income is its net interest income which is the difference between the

income earned on assets and interest paid on deposits and borrowings used to support such assets Net interest income is

determined by the yields earned on the Companys interest-earning assets and the rates paid on its interest-bearing liabilities

as well as the relative amounts of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities Net interest income divided by

average interest-earning assets represents the Companys net interest margin The net interest spread is the difference

between the yield we earn on our interest-earning assets and the rate we pay on our interest-bearing liabilities

Rate/Volume Analysis Net interest income can be analyzed in terms of the impact of changing interest rates and changing

volumes The following tables set forth the effect which the varying levels of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing

liabilities and the applicable rates have had on changes in the net interest income for the periods presented

December 31 2008 vs 2007

Increase decrease Due to

Rate

Dollars in thousands Volume Rate Volume Total

Interest Income

Loans 4067 $4460 847 $l240
Investment securities 1926 72 209 1645

Federal funds _754 454 298 910
Total Interest Income 5239 $4986 758 505

Interest Expense

Deposits 1232 $2549 241 $l558
Other borrowings 1076 ______ 1069

Total Interest Expense 2308 $2549 248 489

Net Interest Income 2931 .437 510 16

For the purpose of this table the investment securities include marketable and non-marketable securities



Average Balances Income and Expenses and Rates The following table sets forth for the years ended December 31 2008

and 2007 information related to the Companys average balance sheet and its average yields on earning assets and average

costs of interest-bearing liabilities Such yields are derived by dividing income or expense by the average balance of the

corresponding earning assets or interest-bearing liabilities Average balances have been derived from the daily balances

throughout the periods indicated

2008 2007

Average Income Yield Average Income Yield

Dollars in thousands Balance Expense Rate Balance Expense Rate

Assets

Earning assets

Loans 315175 20163 6.40% 264844 1403 8.08%

Investment securities 47130 2308 4.90% 12067 663 5.49%

Federal funds sold and other 7884 239 3.04% 22914 1150 5.02%

Total earning assets 370189 22710 6.13% 299825 23216 7.74%

Cash and due from banks 5579 4720

Premises and equipment 4873 4953

Other assets 8944 7856

Allowance for loan losses 5528 3686
Total assets 313.668

Liabilities

Interest-bearing liabilities

Repurchase agreements 28525 700 2.46% 2315 63 2.72%

Federal funds purchased 1312 24 1.85%

Federal Home Loan Bank

advances 9645 224 2.33%

Note Payable 916 34 3.71%

Subordinated Debt 1294 149 11.50%

Interest-bearing

transaction accounts 15300 324 2.12% 11520 196 1.70%

Savings deposits 18881 223 1.18% 19107 648 3.39%

Time deposits 249765 10902 4.36% 228.748 12162 5.32%

Total interest-bearing liabilities 325638 12.580 3.86% 261690 13069 4.99%

Demand deposits 23739 18864

Accrued interest and other liabilities 3967 2492

Total liabilities 353344 283046

Shareholders equity 30.7 13 30622

Total liabilities and

shareholders equity 384057 313668

Net interest income 10130 10147

Net interest spread 2.21% 2.75%

Net interest margin 2.74% 3.38%

There were $9.9 million and $35172 of loans in non-accrual status as of December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

The effect of fees collected on loans in 2008 and 2007 totaled $260966 and $654596 respectively and increased the

annualized yield on loans by basis points from 6.3 1% for 2008 and by 25 basis points from 7.83% for 2007 The

effect of such fees on the annualized yield on earning assets was an increase of basis points from 6.06% in 2008 and

an increase of 22 basis points from 7.52% in 2007 The effects of such fees on net interest spread were an increase of

basis points from 2.20% for 2008 and an increase of 22 basis points from 2.53% for 2007 The effects of such fees on

net interest margin were an increase of 17 basis points from 2.57% for 2008 and an increase of 21 basis points from

3.17% for 2007

For the purpose of this table the investment securities include marketable and non-marketable securities



Interest Sensitivity The Company monitors and manages the pricing and maturity of its assets and liabilities in order to

diminish the potential adverse impact that changes in interest rates could have on its net interest income The principal

monitoring technique employed by the Company is the measurement of the Companys interest sensitivity gap which is

the positive or negative dollar difference between assets and liabilities that are subject to interest rate repricing within given

period of time Interest rate sensitivity can be managed by repricing assets or liabilities selling securities available for sale

replacing an asset or liability at maturity or adjusting the interest rate during the life of an asset or liability Managing the

amount of assets and liabilities repricing in this same time interval helps to hedge the risk and minimize the impact on net

interest income of rising or falling interest rates

The following table sets forth the Companys interest rate sensitivity at December 31 2008

After

Three One Greater

Within Through Through Than

Three Twelve Five Five

Dollars in thousands Months Months Years Years Total

Assets

Earning assets

Loans gross 182297 19515 110307 8788 320907

Investment securities available for sale 1500 1500 17594 27008 47602
Other investments 1805 1805

Fed Funds 4625 _________ _________ 4625
Total earning assets 188422 21015 127901 37601 374939

Liabilities

Interest-bearing liabilities

Interest-bearing deposits

Repurchase agreements 15000 15000 30000
Other Borrowings 25000 1570 4325 30895

Demand deposits 16449 16449

Savings deposits 14461 14461

Time deposits 199.302 40349 3920 243571

Total interest-bearing liabilities 255212 41919 18920 19325 335376

Period gap 66.790 2O9O4 108981 18276 39563
Cumulative gap 66.790 87694 21287 39.563

Ratio of cumulative gap to total earning assets 17.81% 23.39% 5.68% 10.55%

The above table reflects the balances of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities at the earlier of their repricing

or maturity dates Overnight federal funds are reflected at the earliest pricing interval due to the immediately available

nature of the instruments Scheduled payment amounts of fixed rate amortizing loans are reflected at each scheduled

payment date Scheduled payment amounts of variable rate amortizing loans are reflected at each scheduled payment date

until the loan may be repriced contractually the unamortized balance is reflected at that point Interest-bearing liabilities

with no contractual maturity such as savings deposits and interest-bearing transaction accounts are reflected in the earliest

repricing period due to contractual arrangements which give the Company the opportunity to vary the rates paid on those

deposits within thirty-day or shorter period Fixed rate time deposits principally certificates of deposit are reflected at

their contractual maturity date

The Company generally would benefit from increasing market rates of interest when it has an asset-sensitive gap position

and generally would benefit from decreasing market rates of interest when it is liability-sensitive The Company is

cumulatively liability sensitive over the three-month to twelve-month period and asset sensitive over all periods greater than

one year However the Companys gap analysis is not precise indicator of its interest sensitivity position The analysis

presents only static view of the timing of maturities and repricing opportunities without taking into consideration that

changes in interest rates do not affect all assets and liabilities equally Net interest income may be impacted by other

significant factors in given interest rate environment including changes in the volume and mix of earning assets and

interest-bearing liabilities



Provision and Allowance for Loan Losses

General The Company has developed policies and procedures for evaluating the overall quality of its credit portfolio and

the timely identification of potential problem loans On quarterly basis the Companys Board of Directors reviews and

approves the appropriate level for the Companys allowance for loan losses based upon managements recommendations the

results of the internal monitoring and reporting system and an analysis of economic conditions in its market

Additions to the allowance for loan losses which are expensed through the provision for loan losses on the Companys

income statement are made periodically to maintain the allowance at an appropriate level based on managements analysis of

the estimated losses inherent in the loan portfolio Loan losses and recoveries are charged or credited directly to the

allowance The amount of the provision is function of the level of loans outstanding the level of non-performing loans

historical loan loss experience the amount of loan losses actually charged against the reserve during given period and

current and anticipated economic conditions

The Companys allowance for loan losses is based upon judgments and assumptions about risk elements in the portfolio

future economic conditions and other factors affecting borrowers The process includes identification and analysis of loss

potential in various portfolio segments utilizing credit risk grading process
and specific reviews and evaluations of

significant problem credits However there is no precise method of estimating credit losses since any estimate of loan

losses is necessarily subjective and the accuracy depends on the outcome of future events In addition due to our rapid

growth over the past several years and our limited operating history large portion of the loans in our loan portfolio was

originated recently In general loans do not begin to show signs of credit deterioration or default until they have been

outstanding for some period of time process referred to as seasoning As result portfolio of more mature loans will

usually behave more predictably than newer portfolio Because our loan portfolio is relatively new the current level of

delinquencies and defaults may not be representative of the level that will prevail when the portfolio becomes more

seasoned which may be higher than current levels If charge-offs in future periods increase we may be required to increase

our provision for loan losses which would decrease our net income and possibly our capital

Based on present information and an ongoing evaluation management considers the allowance for loan losses to be adequate

to meet presently known and inherent losses in the loan portfolio Managements judgment about the adequacy of the

allowance is based upon number of assumptions about future events which it believes to be reasonable but which may or

may not be accurate Thus there can be no assurance that charge-offs in future periods will not exceed the allowance for

loan losses or that additional increases in the allowance for loan losses will not be required especially considering the overall

weakness in the commercial real estate market in our market areas

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to the Companys allowance for loan losses and the

composition of charge-offs and recoveries for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007

Allowance for Loan Losses

2007Dollars in thousands

Total loans outstanding at end of period

Average loans outstanding

Balance of allowance for loan losses at beginning of
year

Provision for loan losses

Charge-offs

Balance of allowance for loan losses at end of year

Allowance for loan losses to period end loans

Non-performing Assets

2008

320907

315175

4214

7168

3294
8088

2.52%

302934

264844

3091

1188

65
4.214

1.39%

Non-performing Assets There were $9.9 million and $35172 of non-accrual loans at December 31 2008 and December 31

2007 respectively There were $6035 of loans past due 90 days or more and still accruing interest or restructured loans at

December 31 2008 There were no loans past due 90 days or more and still accruing interest or restructured loans at

December 31 2007 There was $415229 and $0 in Other Real Estate Owned at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively



The Companys policy with respect to non-performing assets is as follows Accrual of interest will be discontinued on loan

when management believes after considering economic and business conditions and collection efforts that the borrowers

financial condition is such that the collection of interest is doubtful delinquent loan will generally be placed in non-

accrual status when it becomes 90 days or more past due unless the estimated net realizable value of collateral exceeds the

principal balance and accrued interest When loan is placed in non-accrual status all interest which has been accrued on

the loan but remains unpaid is reversed and deducted from current earnings as reduction of reported interest income No

additional interest will be accrued on the loan balance until the collection of both principal and interest becomes reasonably

certain When problem loan is finally resolved there may ultimately be an actual write-down or charge-off of the principal

balance of the loan to the allowance for loan losses

Potential Problem Loans Potential problem loans are loans that are not included in impaired loans but about which

management has become aware of information about possible credit problems of the borrowers that causes doubt about their

ability to comply with current repayment terms At December 31 2008 and December 31 2007 the Company had identified

$424844 and $1625150 respectively of potential problem loans through its internal review procedures The results of this

internal review process are considered in determining managements assessment of the adequacy of the allowance for loan

losses

Non-interest Income and Expense

Non-interest Income The largest component of non-interest income was mortgage origination fees which totaled $469529

and $998111 for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

The following table sets forth the principal components of non-interest income for the years ended December 31 2008 and

2007

Dollars in thousands 2008 2007

Mortgage origination fees 470 998

Service charges on deposit accounts 322 148

Bank-owned life insurance 211 222

Other income 389 206

Total non-interest income 1392 1574

Non-interest Expense Salaries and employee benefits comprised the largest component of non-interest expense
which

totaled $4.8 million and $4.3 million for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively All of the other

categories of non-interest expense totaled $4.7 million and $3.9 million for the years
ended December 31 2008 and 2007

respectively

The following table sets forth the primary components of non-interest expense for the years
ended December 31 2008 and

2007

Dollars in thousands 2008 2007

Salaries and benefits 4828 4336

Net occupancy
638 500

Depreciation
718 601

Equipment maintenance and rental 194 109

Advertising
248 270

Professional fees 449 335

Office supplies
95 146

Telephone
148 145

Data processing
758 603

Other 1.435 1139

Total non-interest expense 9511 8184

10



Earning Assets

Loans Loans are the largest category of earning assets and typically provide higher yields than the other types of earning

assets Loans also entail greater credit and liquidity risks than most of the Companys other investments and short-term

interest-earning cash and cash equivalents which management attempts to control and counterbalance Loans averaged

$315.2 million and $264.8 million in 2008 and 2007 respectively Total loans were $320.9 million and $302.9 million at

December 2008 and 2007 respectively

The following table sets forth the composition of the loan portfolio by category at December 31 2008 and 2007 and

highlights the Companys general emphasis on mortgage lending

2008 2007

Percent Percent

Dollars in thousands Amount Of Total Amount Of Total

Real estate construction 129777 40.44/a 124016 40.94%

Real estate mortgage 154838 48.25/a 149369 49.3 1%
Commercial and industrial 33303 10.38% 26095 8.6 1%
Consumer 2989 0.93% 3454 1.14%

Total loans gross 320907 100.00% 302934 100.00%

Allowance for loan losses 8088 4214
Net loans S312819

The largest component of loans in the Companys loan portfolio is real estate mortgage loans At December 31 2008 and

2007 real estate mortgage loans which consist of first and second mortgages Ofl single or multi-family residential dwellings

loans secured by commercial and industrial real estate and other loans secured by multi-family properties and farmland

totaled $154.8 million and $149.4 million respectively and represented 48.25% and 49.3 1% respectively of the total loan

portfolio In the context of this discussion real estate mortgage loan is defined as any loan other than loan for

construction purposes secured by real estate regardless of the purpose of the loan It is common practice for financial

institutions in the Companys market area to obtain security interest in real estate whenever possible in addition to any
other available collateral This collateral is taken to reinforce the likelihood of the ultimate repayment of the loan and tends

to increase the magnitude of the real estate loan portfolio component Real estate mortgage loans represent 25% of our

impaired loans

The demand for residential and commercial real estate loans in the upstate South Carolina market is strong due to the

historically low interest rate environment Commercial real estate loans are generally viewed as having more risk of default

than residential real estate loans They are also typically larger than residential real estate loans and consumer loans and

depend on cash flows from the owners business or the property to service the debt Cash flows may be affected

significantly by general economic conditions including rising interest rates downturn in the local economy or decline

in occupancy rates in the local economy where the property is located Because our loan portfolio contains number of

commercial real estate loans with relatively large balances the deterioration of one or few of these loans could cause

significant increase in our level of non-performing loans An increase in non-performing loans could result in loss of

earnings from these loans an increase in the related provision for loan losses and an increase in charge-offs all of which

could have material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations

Real estate construction loans totaled $129.8 million and $124.0 million at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively In the

context of this discussion real estate construction loan is defined as any loan for construction purposes secured by real

estate Real estate construction loans represent 74% of our impaired loans

Commercial and industrial loans totaled $33.3 million and $26.1 million at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively and

comprised 10.38% and 8.61% respectively of the total portfolio In the context of this discussion commercial and

industrial loan is defined as any loan for non-consumer purpose not secured by real estate

The Companys loan portfolio also includes consumer loans At December 31 2008 and 2007 consumer loans totaled $3.0

million and $3.5 million respectively and represented 0.93% and 1.14% respectively of the total loan portfolio

The Companys loan portfolio reflects the diversity of its upstate South Carolina market The Companys offices are located

in Easley Spartanburg Mauldin Greer Anderson and Greenville South Carolina Management expects the area to remain

stable with continued growth in the near future The diversity of the economy creates opportunities for all types of lending

The Company does not engage in foreign lending
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The repayment of loans in the loan portfolio as they mature is also source of liquidity for the Company The following

tables set forth the Companys loans maturing within specified intervals at December 31 2008 and 2007

2008 Over One

Year

Through Over

One Year Five Five

Dollars in thousands or Less Years Years Total

Real estateconstruction 76579 51914 1284 129777

Real estatemortgage 24951 106620 23267 154838

Commercial and industrial 17384 13863 2056 33303

Consumer 686 1641 662 2989

119600 174O38 27269 320907

Loans maturing after one year with

Fixed interest rates
169843

Floating interest rates
1464

201307

2007 Over One

Year

Through Over

One Year Five Five

Dollars in thousands or Less Years Years Total

Realestateconstruction 66972 49908 7136 124016

Real estate mortgage 34964 93976 20429 149369

Commercial and industrial 13351 11313 1431 26095

Consumer 1408 784 3454

11669.S 156459 29.780 302934

Loans maturing after one year with

Fixed interest rates
132590

Floating interest rates
53649

186239

The information presented in the above table is based on the contractual maturities of the individual loans including loans

which may be subject to renewal at their contractual maturity Renewal of such loans is subject to review and credit

approval as well as modification of terms upon their maturity Consequently management believes this treatment presents

fairly the maturity and repricing structure of the loan portfolio shown in the above table

Investment Securities and Other Investments The investment securities portfolio which averaged $47.1 million and $12.0

million in 2008 and 2007 respectively is component of the Companys total earning assets At December 31 2008 and

2007 the total investment securities portfolio was $49.4 million and $25.3 million respectively Investment securities were

primarily
marketable investments recorded at their fair value Other investments consisted of Federal Home Loan Bank of

Atlanta FHLB stock recorded at cost

The following table sets forth the fair value of the securities held by the Company at December 31 2008 and 2007

Dollars in thousands
2008 2007

Investment securities 47602 24844

Other investments
1805 447

Total investment securities portfolio
49407 25291

Short-Term Investments Short-term investments which consist primarily of federal funds sold averaged $7.9 million and

$22.9 million in 2008 and 2007 respectively with weighted average yield of 3.04% and 5.02% in 2008 and 2007

respectively These funds are an important source of the Companys liquidity Federal funds are generally invested in an

earning capacity on an overnight basis At December 31 2008 and 2007 federal funds were $4.6 million and $33.7 million

at an annualized overnight rate of 0.50% and 4.15% respectively The maximum outstanding balance of federal funds sold at

any
month end during the years

2008 and 2007 was $16.4 million and $40.8 million respectively
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Deposits

General Average interest-bearing liabilities totaled $325.8 million and $261.7 million in 2008 and 2007 respectively

Average total deposits totaled $307.7 million and $278.2 million during 2008 and 2007 respectively At December 31 2008

and 2007 total deposits were $296.6 million and $327.7 million respectively

The following table sets forth the average deposits of the Company by category for the year ended December 31 2008 and

2007

2008 2007

Average Average
Dollars in thousands Amount Rate Amount Rate

Non-interest bearing demand 23739 18864
Interest bearing demand 15300 2.12% 11520 1.70%

Savings 18881 1.18% 19107 3.39%

Time 249765 4.36% 228748 5.32%

Total 278239

The following table sets forth the deposits of the Company by category as of December 31 2008 and 2007

2008 2007

%of %of
Dollars in thousands Amount Deposits Amount Deposits

Non-interest bearing demand 22162 7.47% 24464 7.46%

Interest bearing demand 16449 5.55% 13721 4.19%

Savings 14461 4.87% 24634 7.52%
Time deposits less than $100 32111 10.82% 59528 18.17%

Time deposits of $100 or over 25162 8.49% 47118 14.38%

Brokered deposits 186.298 62.80% 158199 48.28%

Total S296.643 _JAfflAffl% 5327664 100.00%

Core deposits which exclude certificates of deposit of $100000 or more and brokered deposits provide relatively stable

funding source for the Companys loan portfolio and other earning assets The Companys core deposits were $85.2 million

and $122.3 million at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively or 28.7% and 37.3% respectively of total deposits
Certificates of deposit of $100000 or more and brokered deposits are not considered core deposits because their retention

can be expected to be heavily influenced by rates offered at renewal Due to the developed national market for certificates of

deposit we anticipate being able to either renew or replace these deposits when they renew however no assurance can be

given that we will be able to replace them with deposits with the same terms

For the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 our non-core deposits included wholesale funding in the form of brokered

CDs of $186.3 million and $158.2 million respectively We generally obtain out-of-market time deposits of $100000 or

more through brokers with whom we maintain ongoing relationships The guidelines governing our participation in brokered

CD programs are part of our Asset Liability Management Program Policy which is reviewed revised and approved annually

by the Asset Liability Committee These guidelines limit our brokered CDs to 65% of total deposits dictate that our current

interest rate risk profile determines the terms and that we only accept brokered CDs from approved correspondents In

addition we do not obtain time deposits through the Internet These guidelines allow us to take advantage of the attractive

terms that wholesale funding can offer while mitigating the inherent related risk

Deposits have been primary source of funding Management anticipates that deposits will continue to be the Companys
primary source of funding in the future The Companys loan-to-deposit ratio was 108.17% and 92.45% at December 31
2008 and 2007 respectively The maturity distribution of the Companys time deposits of $100000 or over at December 31
2008 and 2007 is set forth in the following tables
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Maturities of Certificates of Deposit of $100000 or More Including Brokered Deposits

Dollars in thousands

December 31 2008

Certificates of deposit of $100000 or more

December 31 2007

Certificates of deposit of $100000 or more

Dollars in thousands

December 31 2008

Federal Home Loan Bank advances

Federal funds purchased

Securities sold under agreement to repurchase

Bank of Tennessee note payable

Subordinated debt

December 31 2007

Securities sold under agreement to repurchase 15000 2.58%

Weighted

-Average

Average Rate for

Balance Year

Maximum

Outstanding

at any

Month End

Subordinated Debt During the third quarter of 2008 we commenced subordinated debt offering to enhance and

strengthen the levels of capital and liquidity at the holding company such that we could maintain the resources needed to

maintain well-capitalized levels of regulatory capital at the bank We raised $4.325 million in additional capital before we

closed the offering on October 15 2008 The subordinated notes were sold to limited number of purchasers in private

offering bear an interest rate of 11.5% are callable after September 30 2011 at premium and mature in 2018 The

subordinated debt has been structured to fully count as Tier regulatory capital on consolidated basis

Capital

The FRB and bank regulatory agencies require bank holding companies and financial institutions to maintain capital at

adequate levels based on percentage of assets and off-balance sheet exposures adjusted for risk weights ranging from 0%

to 100%

After After

Three Six

Within Through Through

Three Six Twelve

Months Months Months

After

Twelve

Months Total

$188080 11231 10494 1655 $211460

17479 81361 98331 8146 $205317

Of the Companys time deposits of $100000 or over as of December 31 2008 and 2007 88.95% and 8.5 1% are scheduled

maturities within three months respectively As of December 31 2008 and 2007 99.22% and 96.03% respectively of the

Companys time deposits of $100000 or over had maturities within twelve months

Other Borrowings

The following table outlines our various sources of borrowed funds during the years ended December 31 2008 and

December 31 2007 the amounts outstanding at the end of each period and the weighted-average interest rates paid for each

borrowing source

Period-

Ending End

Balance Rate

25000 1.49% 9645

1312

30000 3.24% 28525

1570 3.25% 916

4325 11.50% 1294

2315

2.33%

1.85%

2.46%

3.71%

11.50%

2.72%

30000

9491

30000

1570

4325

15000

14



The FRB guidelines contain an exemption from the capital requirements for small bank holding companies which in 2006
were amended to cover most bank holding companies with less than $500 million in total assets that do not have material

amount of debt or equity securities outstanding registered with the SEC Although our class of common stock is registered
under Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act we believe that because our stock is not listed on any exchange or

otherwise actively traded the FRB will interpret its new guidelines to mean that we qualify as small bank holding

company Nevertheless our Bank remains subject to these capital requirements Failure to meet minimum capital

requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that if undertaken
could have direct material effect on the Banks financial statements Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory
framework for prompt corrective action the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of

the Banks assets liabilities and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices The
Banks capital amounts and classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components risk

weightings and other factors Regardless at December 2008 our Bank is well capitalized under these minimum
capital requirements as set per bank regulatory agencies

Under the capital adequacy guidelines regulatory capital is classified into two tiers These guidelines require an institution

to maintain certain level of Tier and Tier capital to risk-weighted assets Tier capital consists of common
shareholders equity excluding the unrealized gain or loss on securities available for sale minus certain intangible assets In

determining the amount of risk-weighted assets all assets including certain off-balance sheet assets are multiplied by risk-

weight factor of 0% to 100% based on the risks believed to be inherent in the type of asset Tier capital consists of Tier

capital plus the general reserve for loan losses subject to certain limitations We are also required to maintain capital at

minimum level based on total average assets which is known as the Tier leverage ratio

At the bank level we are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies To
be considered adequately capitalized under these capital guidelines we must maintain minimum total risk-based capital

of 8% with at least 4% being Tier capital In addition we must maintain minimum Tier leverage ratio of at least 4%
To be considered well-capitalized we must maintain total risk-based capital of at least 10% Tier capital of at least 6%
and leverage ratio of at least 5%

Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by
regulators that if undertaken could have material effect on the Banks financial statements Under capital adequacy
guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that

involve quantitative measures of the Banks assets liabilities and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under

regulatory accounting practices The Banks capital amounts and classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments by
the regulators about components risk weightings and other factors

The Bank exceeded the regulatory capital requirements at December 31 2008 and 2007 as set forth in the following table

Analysis of Capital and Capital Ratios

Dollars in thousands

Tier capital

Tier capital

Total qualifying capital

Risk-adjusted total assets including off-balance sheet exposures

Total risk-based capital ratio

Tier risk-based capital ratio

Tier leverage ratio

Off-Balance Sheet Risk

2008

30836

4369

35205

2007

30102

4214

34316

337586

10.18% 10.17%

8.92% 8.92%

7.98% 8.26%

Through its operations the Bank has made contractual commitments to extend credit in the ordinary course of its business

activities These commitments are legally binding agreements to lend money to the Banks customers at predetermined
interest rates for specified period of time At December 31 2008 and 2007 the Bank had issued commitments including

standby letters of credit to extend credit of $39.7 million and $52.5 million respectively through various types of
commercial lending arrangements
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The following tables set forth the length of time until maturity for unused commitments to extend credit at December

2008 and 2007

After After

One Three Greater

Within Through Through Within Than

One Three Twelve One One

Dollars in thousands Month Months Months Year Year Total

December 31 2008

Unused commitments to extend credit 2941 1889 11989 16819 19441 36260

Standby letters of credit 717 80 2617 3414 74 3488

3.658 1969 20233 19515 39748

December 31 2007

Unusedcommitmentstoextendcredit 2479 891 17370 20740 28603 49343

Standby letters of credit 578 833 1411 1766 3177

3057 1724 17370 22151 30369 52520

Approximately $30.9 million and $37.6 million of these commitments to extend credit had variable rates as of December 31

2008 and 2007 respectively

The Bank evaluates each customers creditworthiness on case-by-case basis The amount of collateral obtained if deemed

necessary by the Bank upon extension of credit is based on its credit evaluation of the borrower Collateral varies but may

include accounts receivable inventory property plant and equipment commercial and residential real estate

Critical Accounting Policies

The Company has adopted various accounting policies which
govern

the application of accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America in the preparation of its financial statements Significant accounting policies are

described in the footnotes to the consolidated financial statements at December 31 2008 included in this Annual Report to

Shareholders and as filed with the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K Certain accounting policies involve

significant judgments and assumptions which have material impact on the carrying value of certain assets and liabilities

These accounting policies are considered to be critical accounting policies The judgments and assumptions used are based

on historical experience and other factors which are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances Because of the

nature of the judgments and assumptions actual results could differ from these judgments and estimates which could have

material impact on the carrying values of assets and liabilities and results of operations

Management believes the allowance for loan losses is critical accounting policy that requires the most significant

judgments and estimates used in preparation of the consolidated financial statements Refer to the portion of this discussion

that addresses the allowance for loan losses for description of our processes and methodology for determining our

allowance for loan losses

Liquidity Management

Liquidity management involves monitoring the Companys sources and uses of funds in order to meet its day-to-day cash

flow requirements while maximizing profits Liquidity represents the ability of company to convert assets into cash or cash

equivalents without significant loss and to raise additional funds by increasing liabilities Without proper liquidity

management the Company would not be able to perform the primary function of financial intermediary and would

therefore not be able to meet the needs of the communities it serves

Liquidity management is made more complex because different balance sheet components are subject to varying degrees of

management control For example the timing of maturities of the investment portfolio is very predictable and subject to

high degree of control at the time investment decisions are made However net deposit inflows and outflows are far less

predictable and are not subject to nearly the same degree of control The Company also has the ability to obtain funds from

various financial institutions should the need arise

The bank has policy to maintain liquidity ratio of at least 12% Liquidity for this purpose is defined as cash cash

equivalents and securities available for sale divided by total assets plus one half of any outstanding loan commitments The

banks liquidity ratio at December 31 2008 was 14.10%
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Impact of Inflation

Unlike most industrial companies the assets and liabilities of financial institutions such as the Bank are primarily monetary
in nature Therefore interest rates have more significant effect on the Banks performance than do the effects of changes
in the general rate of inflation and change in prices In addition interest rates do not necessarily move in the same direction

or in the same magnitude as the prices of goods and services As discussed previously management seeks to manage the

relationships between interest sensitive assets and liabilities in order to protect against wide interest rate fluctuations

including those resulting from inflation

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

Accounting standards and pronouncements of recent nature are discussed in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Other accounting standards that have been issued or proposed by
authoritative standards-setting bodies that do not require adoption until future date are not expected to have material

impact on the consolidated financial statements upon adoption
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EfliotiDavis

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors

CommunitySouth Financial Corporation and Subsidiary

Easley South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of CommunitySouth Financial Corporation and

Subsidiary the Company as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the related consolidated statements of operations changes

in shareholders equity and comprehensive income and cash flows for the years then ended These financial statements are the

responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on

our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates

made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide

reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the financial position of

CommunitySouth Financial Corporation and Subsidiary as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the results of their operations

and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America

We were not engaged to examine managements assessment of the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31 2008 included in the accompanying Managements Report on Internal Controls Over

Financial Reporting and accordingly we do not express an opinion thereon

Greenville South Carolina

March 28 2009
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COMMUNITYSOUTH FINANCIAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Assets

2008

December 31

2007

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and due from bank

Federal funds sold

Total cash and cash equivalents

Investment securities available for sale

Other investments at cost

Loans net of allowance for loan loss of $8088218
and $4213547 in 2008 and 2007 respectively

Accrued interest receivable

Property and equipment net

Bank-owned life insurance

Other assets

Total assets

5250751

4625000

9875751

47601552

1805200

312818938

1628073

4618188

5437331

4031269

6486676

33665005

40151681

24844007

446800

298720357

2092066

5073685

5226806

1311799

$3786i20i

Liabilities and Shareholders Equity

Liabilities

Deposits

Non-interest bearing

Interest bearing

Total deposits

Repurchase agreements

Federal Home Loan Bank advances

Note payable

Subordinated debt

Accrued
expenses

Accrued interest payable

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

22161873

274481.473

296643346

30000000

25000000

1570000

4325000

192795

1405712

150972

359287825

24464433

303199212

327663645

15000000

427380

3238298

66.742

346396065

Commitments and contingencies Note 14

Shareholders Equity

Preferred stock par value $01 per share

10000000 shares authorized no shares issued

Common stock par value $01 per share

10000000 shares authorized 4698697 issued

and outstanding at December 31 2008 and December 31 2007

Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Retained earnings deficit

Total shareholders equity 28528477

Total liabilities and shareholders equity 2i630 JJL672QI

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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491384
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COMMUNITYSOUTH FINANCIAL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Interest income

Interest and fees on loans

Interest and dividends on investments

Far the years ended December 31

Total interest income

Interest expense

Net interest income

22710652

12579825

10 130827

23216040

3068

10147455

Provision for loan losses 168000 11 88Q2Q

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 2962827 895945

Mortgage origination fees

Other

Total non-interest income

Salaries and benefits

Occupancy

Depreciation

Equipment maintenance and rental

Advertising

Professional fees

Office supplies

Telephone

Data processing

Other

Total non-interest expense

469529

922263

1391792

4827948

637881

717735

194012

248117

449110

95306

147967

757822

1.435018

95 19j

998111

576109

1574220

4336105

500458

601017

108856

269860

334978

145633

144771

602975

1139254

8183907

Income loss before income taxes

Income tax expense benefit

5156297 2349768

1805806 78

Net income loss JU2
Earnings loss per share

Basic

Diluted

Weighted average
basic shares outstanding

Weighted average diluted shares outstanding

7l
L274691

s_

L2QI
Adjusted for 5-for-4 stock split January 16 2007

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

2008 2007

20163191

2547461

21402981

1813059

Non-interest income

Non-interest expense
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COMMUNITYSOUTH FINANCIAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN

SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the years ended December 31 2008 and December 31 2007

Accumulated

Additional Other Retained Total Total

Common Stock Paid-in Comprehensive Earnings Shareholders Comprehensive
Shares Amount Capital Income Deficit Equity Income Loss

Balance at December 31 2006 4697697 46977 29635458 12520 29694955

Net income
1568112 1568112 1568112

Other comprehensive income

Unrealized gains on securities

net of income taxes of $89200 152050 152050 152050

Total comprehensive income

Stock based compensation 55320 55320

Cash paid for fractional shares 5701 5701

Stock options exercised 1000 10 6390 6400

Balance at December 31 2007 4698697 46987 29691467 152050 1580632 31471136

Net loss 3350491 3350491 3350491

Other comprehensive income

loss

Unrealized gains on securities

net of income taxes of$148678 339334 339334 39334

Total comprehensive income

loss
_____

Stock based compensation 68498 68498

Balance at December 31 2008 4698697 46987 29759965 491.384 S1769859 28528411

Adjusted for 5-for-4 stock splits effective January 16 2007

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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COMMUNITYSOUTH FINANCIAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the years ended December 31

2008 2007

Operating activities

Net income loss 3350491 1568112

Adjustments to reconcile net income loss to net cash provided by

operating activities

Provision for loan losses 7168000 1188000

Stock based compensation 68498 55320

Depreciation 717736 601017

Appreciation of bank-owned life insurance 210525 222048
Deferred income tax benefit 2273206 275892
Decrease increase in accrued interest receivable 463993 914264
Increase decrease in accrued interest payable 1832586 1813192

Increase decrease in accrued expenses 234585 327050

Decrease increase in other assets 598314 237534

Increase in other liabilities 84230 45.038

Net cash provided by operating activities 2750 4423059

Investing activities

Net increase in loans outstanding 21266581 85335311
Purchase of investments and FHLB stock net 23624561 24678757
Purchase of property and equipment 262239 931536

Net cash used in investing activities 45153381 110945.604

Financing activities

Net increase decrease in deposit accounts 31020299 110632457

Increase in repurchase agreements 15000000 15000000

Change in Federal Home Loan Bank advances 25000000

Subordinated debt issuance 4325000

Bank of Tennessee note payable 1570000

Cash paid for fractional shares 5701
Stock options exercised 6400

Net cash provided by financing activities 14.874701 125633.156

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 30275930 19110611

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BEGINNING OF YEAR 40151681 21.041070

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS END OF YEAR 9875751 40151681

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION

Cash paid for

Interest 14412411 11.255.393

Income taxes 619500 900197

SCHEDULE OF NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
Unrealized gain on investment securities net of income taxes 491384 152050

Loans charged-off 3294000 65000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business Activity and Organization CommunitySouth Financial Corporation the Company is South Carolina

corporation organized for the purpose
of owning and controlling all of the capital stock of CommunitySouth Bank and Trust

the Bank The Bank is state chartered bank organized under the laws of South Carolina From inception on March 20

2004 through January 18 2005 the Company engaged in organizational and pre-opening activities necessary to obtain

regulatory approvals and to prepare its subsidiary the Bank to commence business as financial institution The Company

received approval from the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation FDIC the Federal Reserve Board FRB and the

State Board of Financial Institutions in January 2005

The Bank began operations on January 18 2005 The Bank primarily is engaged in the business of accepting deposits

insured by the FDIC and providing commercial consumer and mortgage loans to the general public

The Company sold 4681069 shares of common stock at $6.40 per share in an initial public offering that was completed on

February 15 2005 as adjusted for all stock splits The offering raised $29430810 net of offering costs The directors and

officers of the Company purchased 659531 shares at $6.40 per
share for total of $4221000

Basis of Presentation The accounting and reporting policies conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America and to general practices in the banking industry The Company uses the accrual basis of

accounting

Principles of Consolidation The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of CommunitySouth Financial

Corporation the parent company and CommunitySouth Bank and Trust its wholly owned subsidiary All significant

intercompany items have been eliminated in the consolidated financial statements

Managements Estimates The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the

reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial

statements and the reported amounts of income and
expenses during the reporting period Actual results could differ from

those estimates

Disclosure Regarding Segments The Company reports as one operating segment as management reviews the results of

operations of the Company as single enterprise

Cash and Cash Equivalents For purposes
of reporting cash flows cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand

amounts due from banks short-term interest bearing deposits and federal funds sold Cash and cash equivalents have an

original maturity of three months or less

Concentrations of Credit Risk Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit

risk consist principally of loans receivable investment securities federal funds sold and amounts due from banks

The Company makes loans to individuals and small businesses for various personal and commercial purposes primarily in

the upstate region of South Carolina The Companys loan portfolio is not concentrated in loans to any single borrower or to

relatively small number of borrowers Additionally management is not aware of any concentrations of loans to classes of

borrowers or industries that would be similarly affected by economic conditions

In addition to monitoring potential concentrations of loans to particular borrowers or groups of borrowers industries and

geographic regions management monitors exposure to credit risk that could arise from potential concentrations of lending

products and practices such as loans that subject borrowers to substantial payment increases e.g principal deferral periods

loans with initial interest-only periods etc and loans with high loan-to-value ratios Additionally there are industry

practices that could subject the Company to increased credit risk should economic conditions change over the course of

loans life For example the Company makes variable rate loans and fixed rate principal-amortizing loans with maturities

prior to the loan being frilly paid i.e balloon payment loans These loans are underwritten and monitored to manage the

associated risks Management has determined that there is no concentration of credit risk associated with its lending policies

or practices
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The Companys investment portfolio consists of both marketable and non-marketable equity securities Management

believes credit risk associated with the equity securities is not significant The Company places its deposits and

correspondent accounts with and sells its federal funds to high quality institutions Management believes credit risk

associated with correspondent accounts is not significant

Investment Securities The Company accounts for investment securities in accordance with Statement of Financial

Accounting Standards No 115 Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities SFAS 115 The

statement requires investments in equity and debt securities to be classified into three categories

Available for sale securities These are securities that are not classified as either held to maturity or as trading

securities These securities are reported at fair market value Unrealized gains and losses are reported net of income

taxes as separate components of shareholders equity accumulated other comprehensive income

Held to maturity securities These are investment securities that the company has the ability and intent to hold until

maturity These securities are stated at cost adjusted for amortization of premiums and the accretion of discounts

Trading securities These are securities that are bought and held principally for the purpose
of selling in the near

future Trading securities are reported at fair market value and related unrealized gains and losses are recognized in

the income statement The company has no trading securities

Gains or losses on dispositions of investment securities are based on the differences between the net proceeds and the

adjusted carrying amount of the securities sold using the specific identification method Premiums and discounts are

amortized or accrued into interest income by method that approximates level yield

Other Investments CommunitySouth Bank and Trust as member institution is required to own stock investments in the

FHLB Investment in the FHLB is condition of borrowing from the FHLB and the stock is pledged to collateralize such

borrowings No ready market exists for the stock and it has no quoted market value However redemption of these stocks

has historically been at par value At December 31 2008 and 2007 the Companys investment in FHLB stock was

$1805200 and $446800 respectively The dividend received on this stock is included in interest and dividends on

investments

Loans Receivable Loans are stated at their unpaid principal balance less an allowance for loan losses and net deferred loan

origination fees Interest income is computed using the simple interest method and is recorded in the period earned Loan

origination fees collected and certain loan origination costs are deferred and the net amount is accreted as income using

method that approximates the level yield method over the life of the related loans

In accordance with SFAS No 114 Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of Loan SFAS 114 loans are considered

to be impaired when in managements judgment and based on current information the full collection of principal and

interest becomes doubtful loan is also considered impaired if its terms are modified in troubled debt restructuring

Impaired loans are placed in non-performing status and future payments are applied to principal until such time as collection

of the obligation is no longer doubtful Interest accrual resumes only when loans return to performing status To return to

performing status loans must be fully current and continued timely payments must be reasonable expectation Loans are

generally placed on non-accrual status when principal or interest becomes ninety days past due or when payment in full is

not anticipated When loan is placed on non-accrual status interest accrued but not received is generally reversed against

interest income Cash receipts on non-accrual loans are not recorded as interest income but are used to reduce principal

The Company identifies impaired loans through its normal internal loan review process Loans on the Companys potential

problem loan list are considered potentially impaired loans These loans are evaluated in determining whether all

outstanding principal and interest are expected to be collected Loans are not considered impaired if minimal payment

delay occurs and all amounts due including accrued interest at the contractual interest rate for the period of delay are

expected to be collected Management has determined that the Company had $9921917 and $35172 in impaired loans at

December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

Allowance for Loan Losses The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through

provision for loan losses charged to earnings Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the

uncollectability of loan balance is confirmed Subsequent recoveries if any are credited to the allowance
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The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on regular basis by management and is based upon managements periodic

review of the collectability of the loans in light of historical experiences the nature and volume of the loan portfolio adverse

situations that may affect the borrowers ability to repay estimated value of any underlying collateral and prevailing

economic conditions This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant

revision as more information becomes available

The allowance consists of specific general and unallocated components The specific component relates to loans that are

classified as either doubtful substandard or special mention For such loans that are also classified as impaired an allowance

is established when the discounted cash flows or collateral value or observable market price of the impaired loan is lower

than the carrying value of the loan The general component covers non-classified loans and is based on historical loss

experience adjusted for qualitative factors An unallocated component is maintained to cover uncertainties that could affect

managements estimate of probable losses The unallocated component of the allowance reflects the margin of imprecision

inherent in the underlying assumptions used in the methodologies for estimating specific and general losses in the portfolio

loan is considered impaired when based on current information and events it is probable that the Company will be unable

to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement
Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment status collateral value and the probability of

collecting scheduled principal and interest payments due Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment
shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment
shortfalls on case-by-case basis taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower

including the length of the delay the reasons for the delay the borrowers prior payment record and the amount of the

shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed Impairment is measured on loan by loan basis for commercial and

construction loans by either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loans effective interest rate

the loans obtainable market price or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent

Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment Accordingly the Company
does not separately identify individual consumer and residential loans for impairment disclosures unless such loans are the

subject of restructuring agreement

Bank-Owned Life Insurance The Company has purchased life insurance policies on certain key employees These

policies are recorded in other assets at their cash surrender value or the amount that can be realized Income from these

policies and changes in the net cash surrender value are recorded in non-interest income

Advertising Advertising promotional and other business development costs generally are expensed as incurred External

costs incurred in producing media advertising are expensed the first time the advertising takes place External costs relating

to direct mailing costs are expensed in the period in which the direct mailings are sent

Property and Equipment Premises furniture and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation

Depreciation expense
is computed using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives for furniture and

equipment of to 10 years and buildings of 39 years Leasehold improvements are amortized over the life of the lease

Maintenance and repairs are charged to current expense The costs of major renewals and improvements are capitalized

Residential Loan Origination Fees The Company offers residential loan origination services to its customers in its

immediate market area The loans are offered on terms and prices offered by the Companys correspondents and are closed

in the name of the correspondents The Company receives fees for services it provides in conjunction with the origination

services it provides The fees are recognized at the time the loans are closed by the Companys correspondent

Income Taxes The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis When income and
expenses

are recognized in different periods for financial reporting purposes versus for the
purposes of computing income taxes

currently payable deferred taxes are provided on such temporary differences The Company accounts for income taxes in

accordance with SFAS No 109 Accounting for Income Taxes SFAS 109
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In June 2006 the FASB issued Interpretation No 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes FIN 48 to clarify

the accounting and disclosure for uncertainty in tax positions as defined FIN 48 seeks to reduce the diversity in practice

associated with certain aspects of the recognition and measurement related to accounting for income taxes The Company

implemented the provisions of FIN 48 as of January 2007 and has analyzed filing positions in all of the federal and state

jurisdictions where it is required to file income tax returns as well as all open tax years in these jurisdictions The Company

believes that its income tax filing positions taken or expected to be taken in an its tax returns will more likely than not be

sustained upon audit by the taxing authorities and does not anticipate any adjustments that will result in material adverse

impact on the Companys financial condition results of operations or cash flow Therefore no reserves for uncertain income

tax positions have been recorded pursuant to FIN 48 In addition the Company did not record cumulative effect adjustment

in 2007 related to the adoption of FIN 48

Under SFAS 109 and FIN 48 deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the expected future tax consequences of

events that have been recognized in the consolidated financial statements or tax returns Income taxes are the sum of

amounts currently payable to taxing authorities and the net changes in income taxes payable or refundable in future years

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years
in

which those temporary differences are expected to be realized or settled Income taxes deferred to future years are

determined utilizing an asset and liability approach This method gives consideration to the future tax consequences

associated with differences between financial accounting and tax bases of certain assets and liabilities which are principally

the allowance for loan losses depreciable premises and equipment and net operating loss carry-forwards

Earnings Per Share Basic earnings per share represents the net income allocated to shareholders divided by the weighted-

average number of common shares outstanding during the period Diluted earnings per share reflect the impact of additional

common shares that would have been outstanding if dilutive potential common shares had been issued Potential common

shares that may be issued by the Company relate to both outstanding warrants and stock options and are determined using

the treasury stock method

Stockbased Compensation On January 2006 the Company adopted the fair value recognition provisions of the

Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB Statement of Financial Accounting Standards SFAS No 123R
Share-Based Payment which is revision of SFAS No 123 Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation to account for

compensation costs under its stock option plans The Company previously utilized the intrinsic value method under

Accounting Principles Board Opinion No 25 Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees as amended APB 25 Under

the intrinsic value method prescribed by APB 25 no compensation costs were recognized for the Companys stock options

because the option exercise price in its plans equaled the market price on the date of grant Prior to January 2006 the

Company only disclosed the
pro

forma effects on net income and earnings per share as if the fair value recognition

provisions of SFAS No 123R had been utilized

In adopting SFAS No 123 the Company elected to use the modified prospective method to account for the transition from

the intrinsic value method to the fair value recognition method Under the modified prospective method compensation cost

is recognized from the adoption date forward for all new stock options granted and for any outstanding unvested awards as if

the fair value method had been applied to those awards as of the date of grant

Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments In the ordinary course of business the Company enters into off-balance sheet

financial instruments consisting of commitments to extend credit and letters of credit These financial instruments are

recorded in the financial statements when they become payable by the customer

Recently Issued Accounting Standards The following is summary of recent authoritative pronouncements that could

impact the accounting reporting and or disclosure of financial information by the Company

In December 2007 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard

SFAS No 141R Business Combinations SFAS 141R which replaces SFAS 141 SFAS 141R establishes

principles and requirements for how an acquirer in business combination recognizes and measures in its financial

statements the identifiable assets acquired the liabilities assumed and any controlling interest recognizes and measures

goodwill acquired in the business combination or gain from bargain purchase and determines what information to

disclose to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business combination

SFAS 141R is effective for acquisitions by the Company taking place on or after January 2009 Early adoption is

prohibited Accordingly calendar year-end company is required to record and disclose business combinations following

existing accounting guidance until January 2009 The Company will assess the impact of SFAS 141R if and when

future acquisition occurs
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In February 2008 the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No 140-3 Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assets and

Repurchase Financing Transactions FSP 140-3 This FSP provides guidance on accounting for transfer of financial

asset and the transferors repurchase financing of the asset This FSP presumes that an initial transfer of financial asset and

repurchase financing are considered part of the same arrangement linked transaction under SFAS 140 However if

certain criteria are met the initial transfer and repurchase financing are not evaluated as linked transaction and are

evaluated separately under SFAS 140 FSP 140-3 was effective for the Company on January 2009 The adoption of FSP

140-3 had no impact on the Companys financial position results of operations or cash flows

In May 2008 the FASB issued SFAS No 162 The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles SFAS
162 SFAS 162 identifies the sources of accounting principles and the framework for selecting the principles used in the

preparation of financial statements of nongovernmental entities that are presented in conformity with generally accepted

accounting principles GAAP in the United States the GAAP hierarchy SFAS 162 is effective November 15 2008 The

FASB has stated that it does not expect SFAS 162 will result in change in current practice The application of SFAS 162

had no effect on the Companys financial position results of operations or cash flows

The SECs Office of the Chief Accountant and the staff of the FASB issued
press release 2008-234 on September 30 2008

Press Release to provide clarifications on fair value accounting The Press Release includes guidance on the use of

managements internal assumptions and the use of market quotes It also reiterates the factors in SEC Staff Accounting

Bulletin SAB Topic SM which should be considered when determining other-than-temporary impairment the length of

time and extent to which the market value has been less than cost financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer

and the intent and ability of the holder to retain its investment for period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated

recovery in market value

On October 10 2008 the FASB issued FSP SFAS 157-3 Determining the Fair Value of Financial Asset When the

Market for That Asset Is Not Active FSP SFAS 157-3 This FSP clarifies the application of SFAS No 157 Fair Value

Measurements see Note 24 in market that is not active and provides an example to illustrate key considerations in

determining the fair value of financial asset when the market for that asset is not active The FSP is effective upon

issuance including prior periods for which financial statements have not been issued For the Company this FSP was

effective for the quarter ended September 30 2008

The Company considered the guidance in the Press Release and in FSP SFAS 157-3 when conducting its review for other-

than-temporary impairment as of December 31 2008 as discussed in Note 24

Other accounting standards that have been issued or proposed by the FASB or other standards-setting bodies are not

expected to have material impact on the Companys financial position results of operations or cash flows

Risks and Uncertainties In the normal course of its business the Company encounters two significant types of risk

economic and regulatory There are three main components of economic risk interest rate risk credit risk and market risk

The Company is subject to interest rate risk to the degree that its interest-bearing liabilities mature or reprice at different

speeds or on different bases than its interest-earning assets Credit risk is the risk of default on the Companys loan

portfolio that results from borrowers inability or unwillingness to make contractually required payments Market risk

reflects changes in the value of collateral underlying loans receivable and the valuation of real estate held by the Company

The Company is subject to the regulations of various governmental agencies These regulations can and do change

significantly from period to period The Company also undergoes periodic examinations by the regulatory agencies which

may subject it to further changes with respect to asset valuations amounts of required loss allowances and operating

restrictions from the regulators judgments based on information available to them at the time of their examination

Reclassifications Certain captions and amounts in the prior financial statements were reclassified to conform with the 2007

presentation Such reclassifications had no effect on previously reported net income or shareholders equity
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NOTE 2- RESTRICTIONS ON CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS

The Bank is required to maintain average reserve balances computed by applying prescribed percentages to its various types

of deposits either at the Bank or on deposit with the FRB At December 31 2008 and 2007 these required reserves were met

by vault cash

NOTE 3-INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The amortized costs and fair values of investment securities are as follows

As of December 31 2008

Available for sale

Government sponsored enterprises

Mortgage-backed

Marketable securities

Total Available for sale

As of December 31 2007

Available for sale

Government sponsored enterprises

Mortgage-backed

Marketable securities

Total Available for sale

Amortized Gross Unrealized

Cost Gains Losses

$19000824

27768143

100000

546868967

$15488584

9014173

100000

524602757

84601

647984

732585

136049

115428 10227

25L477 10227

Fair

Value

19085425

28416127

100000

547601552

15624633

9119374

100000

24844.007

As of December 31 2007

Available for sale

Mortgage-backed

Total Available for sale

The amortized costs and fair values of investment securities available for sale at December 2008 by contractual maturity

are shown below

December 31 2008 December 31 2007

Amortized Fair Amortized Fair

Cost Value Cost Value

Available for sale

Due within one year 3100824 3139345 4093646 3555000

Due after one through five years 17594284 17694068 1494940 1622834

Due after five through ten years 5224429 5436898 6755981 6293676

Due after ten years 20949430 21331241 2258190 3.372497

Total Available for sale 46868967 47601.552 24.602757 24844.007

Marketable securities are included as due within one year

At December 31 2008 the Company did not have any securities in an unrealized loss position

The table below summarizes gross
unrealized losses on investment securities and the fair market value of the related

securities aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in continuous

unrealized loss position at December 2007

Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Total

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Value Loss Value Gain/Loss Value Gain/Loss

9119374 10.227 9119374 10227

9119374 10227 9119374 10227
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At December 31 2007 the Company had mortgage-backed securities in an unrealized loss position The Company believes

based on industry analyst reports and credit ratings that the deterioration in value is attributed to changes in market interest

rates and not in the credit quality of the issuer and therefore these losses are not considered other-than-temporary The

Company has the ability and intent to hold these securities until such time as the value recovers or the securities mature

No investment securities were sold during 2008 or 2007 Accordingly no gains or losses were recorded At December

2008 there were $36 million of securities pledged as collateral for repurchase agreements from brokers There were $16

million of securities pledged as collateral for repurchase agreements from brokers at December 31 2007

Management limits its credit risk by generally investing its portfolio principally in obligations of the United States of

America its agencies or it corporations Included in the investment portfolio at December 31 2008 are mortgage-backed

securities issued by the Federal National Mortgage Association and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation totaling

$20.7 million and $2.5 million respectively

NOTE 4-OTHER INVESTMENTS

Other investments consisted of FHLB stock with cost of $1805200 and $446800 at December 31 2008 and 2007

respectively All of the FHLB stock is used to collateralize advances with the FHLB

NOTE 5- LOANS RECEIVABLE

Major classifications of loans receivable for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 are summarized as follows

December 31

2008 2007

Real estate construction 129776522 124016089
Real estate mortgage 154838390 149369530
Commercial and industrial 33303276 26094711
Consumer and other 2.988968 3453574

Total loans gross 320907156 302933904
Less allowance for loan losses 8088218 4213547

Total loans net 312818938 298720357

Loans are stated net of deferred fees and costs

The Bank had $9915883 and $35172 of loans classified as non-accrual status as of December 31 2008 and 2007
respectively At December 31 2008 and 2007 loans past due 90 days or more and still accruing amounted to $6035 and $0
respectively See additional disclosures regarding Loans Receivable and Allowance for Loan Losses in Note

Activity in the allowance for loan losses during the
years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 is summarized below

Year Ended December 31
2008 2007

Balance beginning of year 4213547 3090500
Provision charged to operations 7168000 1188000
Charge-offs 3.293329 64953
Balance end of

year 8.088218 4.213547

Year Ended December 31

Impaired Loans 2008 2007

No valuation allowance required 2590369 10643
Valuation allowance required 10581526 24529

Total impaired loans 13171895 35172

Allowance for loan losses on impaired loans at year end 2801565 24529
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Average investment in impaired loans 5109022 55632
Interest income recognized on impaired loans

Accrual basis 671091 553

NOTE 6- PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consisted of the following

December 31

2008 2007

Land 785811 785811

Buildings and leasehold improvements 2845179 2837874

Property and equipment 2757967 2562922
Construction in

progress 95411

Total 6484368 6186607

Less accumulated depreciation 1866180 1112922

Property and equipment net 4618188 5073685

The Company recorded $717736 and $601017 in depreciation expense of property and equipment for the years ended

December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively Construction in progress relates to new branch in Spartanburg

NOTE 7- DEPOSITS

The following table sets forth the deposits of the Company by category as of December 31 2008 and 2007

December 31

2008 2007

Non-interest bearing demand 22161873 24463939
Interest bearing demand 16449191 13720505

Savings 14460941 24634385
Time deposits less than $100000 32111689 59528027
Time deposits of $100000 or over 25161652 47117789

Brokered time deposits 186.298000 158199000
Total deposits 296643346 327663.645

Deposits from outside the Companys market area obtained through brokers amounted to 62.80% and 48.28% of total

deposits at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

Interest expense on time deposits of $100000 or over was $2050217 and $2551994 for years ending December 31 2008

and 2007 respectively

At December 31 2008 the scheduled maturities of certificates of deposit were as follows

Maturing In Amount

2009 239651062

2010 3691021

2011 136698

2012

2013 92560

Thereafter

Total 243.571341
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NOTE 8- REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

At December 2008 the Bank had sold $30.0 million of securities under agreements to repurchase with brokers with

weighted average rate of 3.24% and an average maturity of 90 months The maximum amount outstanding at any month-end

was $30.0 million The average balance for the year was $28524590 These agreements were secured with approximately

$36.1 million of investment securities

At December 31 2007 the Bank had sold $15.0 million of securities under agreements to repurchase with brokers with

weighted average rate of 2.58% and an average maturity of 82 months The maximum amount outstanding at any month-end

was $15.0 million The
average

balance for the year was $2315068 These agreements were secured with approximately

$16.0 million of investment securities

NOTE 9- FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES

At December 31 2008 the bank had $25 million in FHLB advances The advances were secured with approximately $45.5

million in loans and $1.8 million of stock in the FHLB Listed below is summary of the terms and maturities of the

advances

Amount Rate Maturity

10000000 1.53% January 14 2009

10000000 1.03% March 23 2009

5000000 2.32% March 31 2009

25000000

NOTE 10- NOTE PAYABLE

At December 31 2008 the Company had $1.6 million outstanding on line of credit at the Bank of Tennessee The line of

credit matures on September 2009 and bears interest at Lenders Prime which at December 31 2008 was 3.25% The

company had pledged all of the stock of the Bank as collateral for this line of credit The Company repaid this note payable

on February 27 2009 and funds are no longer available to the Company

NOTE 11- SUBORDINATED DEBT

During the third quarter of 2008 we commenced subordinated debt offering to enhance and strengthen the levels of capital

and liquidity at the holding company such that we could maintain the well-capitalized levels of regulatory capital at the

bank We raised $4325 million before we closed the offering on October 15 2008 The subordinated notes were sold to

limited number of purchasers in private offering bear an interest rate of 11.5% are callable by the Company after

September 30 2011 at premium and mature in 2018 The subordinated debt has been structured to fully count as Tier

regulatory capital on consolidated basis

Weighted Maximum

Period- -Average Outstanding

Ending End Average Rate for at any

Dollars in thousands Balance Rate Balance Year Month End

December 31 2008

Subordinated debt 4325 11.50% 1485 11.50% 4325
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NOTE 12-INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense for the year ended December 31 2008 and 2007 is summarized as follows

2008 2007

Current portion

Federal 252629 984495

State 73053

Total current income tax expense 252629 1057548

Deferred income tax expense benefit 1553177 275892
Income tax expense benefit 1.805.806 781656

reconciliation between the income tax expense and the amount is computed by applying the Federal statutory rate of 34%

for 2008 and 2007 to income before income taxes follows

2008 2007

Federal income tax expense at statutory rate 1753141 798921

State income taxes net of federal benefit 48216

Other 52.665 65.481

Income tax expense 1805806 781656

The gross amounts of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are as follows

December 31

Deferred tax assets 2008 2007

Allowance for loan losses 2416674 1122861

Organization and start-up costs 84431 114168

Accrued interest on non-accrual loans 367472 1552

Other 8500 33.497

Total deferred tax assets 2877077 1272078

Deferred tax liabilities

Loan origination costs 89236 88236
SFAS No 115 mark-to-market adjustment 237878 89200

Depreciation 138716 89512

Prepaid expenses 68856 67238
Total deferred tax liabilities 534686 334186
Net deferred tax asset 2.342.391 937892

Deferred tax assets represent the future tax benefit of deductible differences and if it is more likely than not that tax asset

will not be realized valuation allowance is required to reduce the recorded deferred tax assets to net realizable value As of

December 31 2008 and 2007 management has determined that no valuation allowance is required as it is more likely than

not that the recorded net deferred tax assets will be realized in full The net deferred tax asset is included in the caption

other assets on the balance sheet

The Company has analyzed the tax positions taken or expected to be taken in its tax returns and concluded it has no liability

related to uncertain tax positions in accordance with FIN 48
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NOTE 13- LEASES

The Company leases branch locations in Spartanburg Mauldin Anderson Greer and Greenville as well as the loan

operations center in Easley The initial lease terms range from three to ten years with various renewal options The minimum

future rental payments under non-cancelable operating leases having remaining terms in excess of one year for each of the

next five years and in the aggregate are

2009 401771

2010 428364

2011 427870
2012 441471

2013 446817

Thereafter 1505939

Total minimum future rental payments 3652232

NOTE 14- COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is subject to claims and lawsuits which arise primarily in the ordinary course of business Management is not

aware of any legal proceedings which would have material adverse effect on the financial position or operating results of

the Company

The bank has entered into lease for new branch in Spartanburg It is 10 year lease with annual payments of $96000 in

years
1-5 and $105600 in

years 6-10 The lease begins at occupancy The project is currently in process

NOTE 15- RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Certain parties principally certain directors and executive officers of the Company their immediate families and business

interests affiliates are loan customers in the normal course of business with the Bank These loans are made on

substantially the same terms including interest rates and collateral as those prevailing at the time for comparable

transactions with unrelated persons and do not involve more than the normal risk of collectability As of December 31 2008

and 2007 the Bank had related party loans totaling $20539348 and $21946890 respectively During 2008 advances on

related party loans totaled $73 10239 and repayments were $8717781 During 2007 advances on related party loans

totaled $11026237 and repayments were $4330197

Both at December 31 2008 and 2007 affiliates had deposits with the Bank in the amounts of $2.5 million and $3.7 million

respectively

The Company also enters into other transactions in the ordinary course of business with affiliates Company policy requires

transactions with affiliates to be on terms no more favorable than could be obtained from an unaffiliated third party and to be

approved by majority of disinterested directors The following are transactions entered into with affiliates during the years

ended December 31 2008 and 2007

The Spartanburg branch location was leased from partnership in which two Company directors have partnership

interest The property was sold to third party in October 2007 Lease payments on that office totaled $80000 for

the year ended December 2007

The loan operations center in Easley was leased from partnership in which Company director has partnership

interest Lease payments on that office totaled $36000 and $24000 for the years ended December 31 2008 and

2007 respectively

NOTE 16- SHARES OUTSTANDING AND EARNINGS PER SHARE

On January 16 2007 the Company effected 5-for-4 stock split in the form of stock dividend for shareholders of record as

of December 15 2006 All share and per share data has been adjusted for all periods prior to the splits

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net income by the weighted-average number of common shares

outstanding Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net income by the sum of the weighted-average number

of common shares outstanding and dilutive common share equivalents using the treasury stock method Dilutive common

share equivalents include common shares issuable upon exercise of outstanding stock warrants and stock options

33



The following is the basic and diluted income per share computation

December 31

2008 2007

Net income loss to common shareholders 3350491 1.568112

Weighted-average common shares outstanding basic 4698697 4698634

Weighted-average common shares outstanding diluted 4698.697 5.126601

Earnings loss per share basic 0.71 0.33

Earnings loss per share diluted 0.71 0.31

NOTE 17- STOCK COMPENSATION PLANS

Upon completion of the offering the Company agreed to issue warrants to the organizing directors for the purchase of one

share of common stock at $6.40 per share for every two shares purchased in the stock offering up to maximum of 15625

warrants per
director The warrants were fully vested 120 days after January 18 2005 and will expire on January 18 2015

Warrants held by directors of the Company will expire 90 days after the director ceases to be director or officer of the

Company 365 days if due to death or disability The Company issued total of 171404 warrants In addition the

Company has adopted stock option plan As of December 31 2008 the Company has 764113 outstanding options to

employees and directors On January 16 2006 the company adopted resolution that terminated the evergreen provision

of the Company 2005 Stock Incentive Plan As result the number of shares of common stock issuable under the plan shall

not be further increased in connection with any future share issuances by the company The exercise price of each option is

equal to the market price of the Companys stock on the date of grant
The maximum term is ten years and they vest in no

greater than five years When necessary the Company may purchase shares on the open market to satisfy share option

exercises During the ensuing year the Company is expected to acquire no shares

The table set forth below summarizes stock option activity for the Companys stock compensation plans for the years
ended

December 31 2008 and 2007 as adjusted for all stock splits

Stock Options Warrants

Weighted- Weighted-

Average Average

Exercise Exercise

Number Price Number Price

Outstanding at December 31 2006 738013 6.87 171404 6.40

Granted 37173 15.33

Forfeited 12693 13.31

Exercised 1000 6.40

Outstanding at December 31 2007 761493 7.17 171404 6.40

Granted 28600 7.82

Forfeited 25980 10.57

Exercised

Outstanding at December 31 2008 764.113 7.08 171.404 6.40

At December 31 2008 there was no intrinsic value for stock options outstanding and stock options exercisable
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The table set forth below summarizes non-vested stock options as of December 31 2008 and 2007

Weighted-Average Weighted-Average

Number Grant Date

__________________ Fair Value

Outstanding at December 31 2006 11500 6.47

Granted 37173 6.88

Vested during the year 2300 6.44

Forfeited during the year 4100 7.06

Outstanding at December 31 2007 42273 6.79

Granted 28600 3.51

Vestedduringtheyear 7913 7.12

Forfeited during the year 11150 5.62

Outstanding at December 31 2008 51810 5.33

As of December 31 2008 there was $223689 in total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested share-based

compensation arrangements which is expected to be recognized over weighted average period of 42 months As of

December 31 2007 there was $255917 in total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested share-based

compensation arrangements which is expected to be recognized over weighted average period of 49 months

The fair value of each option granted is estimated on the grant date using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the

following assumptions for 2008 and 2007 dividend yield of 0% expected term of 10 years risk-free interest rate of 5.0%
expected life of 10 years and expected volatility of 20%

Stock compensation expense recognized in 2008 and 2007 was $68498 and $55320 respectively

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding under the Companys plans at December 31
2008 and 2007 as adjusted for the 5-for-4 stock splits effective January 16 2007

2008 Outstanding Exercisable

Number of options 764113 712203

Weighted average remaining life 6.42 years 6.26 years

Weighted average exercise price 7.08 6.74

High exercise price 16.80 16.80

Low exercise price 6.40 6.40

2007

Number of options 761493 719220

Weighted average remaining life 7.35 years 7.25 years

Weighted average exercise price 7.17 6.71

High exercise price 16.80 16.80

Low exercise price 6.40 6.40

No options were exercised in 2008 Cash received from the exercise of options during 2007 was $6400 The intrinsic value

of options exercised during 2007 was $2880

At December 31 2008 all of the 171404 warrants were exercisable and had an average remaining life of 6.05 years At

December 2007 all of the 71404 warrants were exercisable and had an average remaining life of 7.05 years
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NOTE 18- EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The Bank maintains an employee benefit plan for all eligible employees of the Bank under the provisions of Internal

Revenue Code Section 40 1k The CommunitySouth 40 1k Plan the Plan adopted in 2006 allows for employee

contributions The Bank matches 25% of employee contributions up to maximum of 1.25% of annual compensation

total of $25292 and $31495 was charged to operations in 2008 and 2007 respectively for the Companys matching

contribution Employees are immediately vested in their contributions to the Plan and become fully vested in the employer

matching contribution after five years of service

NOTE 19- REGULATORY MATTERS

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies Failure to meet

minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that

if undertaken could have direct material adverse effect on the Banks financial condition Under capital adequacy

guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that

involve quantitative measures of the Banks assets liabilities and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under

regulatory accounting practices The Banks capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by

the regulators about components risk weightings and other factors

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain minimum ratios of

Tier and total capital as percentage of assets and off-balance sheet exposures adjusted for risk weights ranging from 0%

to 100% Tier capital consists of common shareholders equity excluding the unrealized gain or loss on securities

available-for-sale minus certain intangible assets Tier capital consists of the allowance for loan losses subject to certain

limitations Total capital for purposes of computing the capital ratios consists of the sum of Tier and Tier capital The

regulatory minimum requirements are 4% for Tier and 8% for total risk-based capital

The Bank is also required to maintain capital at minimum level based on total assets which is known as the leverage ratio

Only the strongest banks are allowed to maintain capital at the minimum requirement of 3% All others are subject to

maintaining ratios 1% to 2% above the minimum

As of December 31 2008 the most recent notification from the Banks primary regulator categorized it as well-capitalized

under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action There are no conditions or events that management believes

have changed the Banks category

The following table summarizes the capital amounts and ratios of the Bank and the regulatory minimum requirements at

December 31 2008 and December 31 2007

To Be Well-

Capitalized Under

For Capital Prompt Corrective

Actual Adeiuacy Purposes Action Provisions

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

December 31 2008

Tier capital to risk-weighted assets $30836000 8.92% 13833000 4.00% $20750000 6.00%

Total capital to risk-weighted assets 35205000 10.18 27666000 8.00 34583000 10.00

Tier capital to average assets 30836000 7.98 15450000 4.00 19313000 5.00

December 31 2007

Tier capital to risk-weighted assets $30102000 8.92% 13503000 4.00% $20255000 6.00%

Total capital to risk-weighted assets 34316000 10.17 27007000 8.00 33759000 10.00

Tier capital to average assets 30102000 8.26 14573000 4.00 18217000 5.00

The FRB has similar requirements for bank holding companies The Company currently is not subject to these requirements

because the FRB applies its guidelines on bank-only basis for bank holding companies with less than $500 million in

consolidated assets
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NOTE 20-LINES OF CREDIT

As of December 31 2008 and 2007 the Bank had unused lines of credit to purchase federal funds from unrelated banks

totaling $14500000 and $15000000 respectively These lines of credit are available on one to fourteen day basis for

general banking purposes As of December 31 2008 and 2007 the Bank has no funds drawn from these lines The

Company also has line of credit to borrow funds from the FHLB up to 15% in 2008 and 10% in 2007 of the Banks total

assets subject to available collateral At December 31 2008 the total line of credit was $57240000 with $25000000

having been drawn leaving $32240000 available At December 31 2007 the availability on this line of credit was

$34670000 with no amount drawn on the line

NOTE 21- RESTRICTIONS ON SUBSIDIARY DIVIDENDS LOANS OR ADVANCES

The ability of CommunitySouth Financial Corporation to pay cash dividends is dependent upon receiving cash in the form of

dividends from the Bank However there are restrictions on the ability of the Bank to transfer funds to CommunitySouth

Financial Corporation in the form of cash dividends loans or advances As South Carolina state bank the Bank may only

pay dividends out of its net profits after deducting expenses including losses and bad debts In addition the Bank is

prohibited from declaring dividend on its shares of common stock until its surplus equals its stated capital At December

31 2007 the Bank was no longer prohibited from declaring dividend because it had surplus of $1970050 However at

December 31 2008 the Bank had deficit of $872916

NOTE 22- FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK

The Company is party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the

financing needs of its customers These financial instruments consist of commitments to extend credit and standby letters of

credit Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to customer as long as there is no violation of any condition

established in the contract Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require

payment of fee commitment involves to varying degrees elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the

amount recognized in the balance sheet The Companys exposure to credit loss in the event of non-performance by the

other party to the instrument is represented by the contractual notional amount of the instrument Since certain commitments

are expected to expire without being drawn upon the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash

requirements The Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments to extend credit as it does for on-balance-

sheet instruments Letters of credit are conditional commitments issued to guarantee customers performance to third

party and have essentially the same credit risk as other lending facilities The Company has not recorded liability for the

current carrying amount of the obligation to perform as guarantor and no contingent liability was considered necessary as

such amounts were not considered material

Collateral held for commitments to extend credit and letters of credit varies but may include accounts receivable inventory

property plant equipment and income-producing commercial properties

The following table summarizes the Companys off-balance sheet financial instruments whose contract amounts represent

credit risk

December 31

2008 2007

Commitments to extend credit 36259688 49.342960

Standby letters of credit 3488081 3176854

NOTE 23- FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

SFAS No 107 Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments SFAS 107 requires disclosure of fair value

information whether or not recognized in the consolidated balance sheets when it is practical to estimate the fair value

SFAS 107 defines financial instrument as cash evidence of an ownership interest in an entity or contractual obligations

which require the exchange of cash or other financial instruments Certain items are specifically excluded from the

disclosure requirements including the Companys common stock premises and equipment accrued interest receivable and

payable and other assets and liabilities
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The fair value of financial instrument is the amount at which the asset or obligation could be exchanged in current

transaction between willing parties other than in forced or liquidation sale Fair value estimates are made at specific

point in time based on relevant market information and information about the financial instruments Because no market

value exists for significant portion of the financial instruments fair value estimates are based on judgments regarding

future expected loss experience current economic conditions risk characteristics of various financial instruments and other

factors

The Company has used managements best estimate of fair value based on the above assumptions Thus the fair values

presented may not be the amounts which could be realized in an immediate sale or settlement of the instrument In addition

any income taxes or other expenses which would be incurred in an actual sale or settlement are not taken into consideration

in the fair values presented

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of significant financial instruments

Cash and Due from Banks The carlying amount is reasonable estimate of fair value

Federal Funds Sold Federal funds sold are for term of one day and the carrying amount approximates the fair value

Investment Securities The fair values of marketable equity securities are valued using quoted fair market prices

Other Investments The carrying value of non-marketable equity securities approximates the fair value since no ready

market exists for the stocks

Bank-owned Life Insurance The cash surrender value of life insurance policies held by the Bank approximates fair values

of the policies

Loans receivable For certain categories of loans such as variable rate loans which are repriced frequently and have no

significant change in credit risk fair values are based on the carrying amounts The fair value of other types of loans is

estimated by discounting the future cash flows using the current rates at which similar loans would be made to borrowers

with similar credit ratings and for the same remaining maturities

Deposits The fair value of demand deposits savings and money market accounts is the amount payable on demand at the

reporting date The fair values of certificates of deposit are estimated using discounted cash flow calculation that applies

current interest rates to schedule of aggregated expected maturities

Repurchase Agreements The carrying value of these instruments is reasonable estimate of fair value

FHLB Advances The carrying value of these instruments is reasonable estimate of fair value

Note Payable The carrying value of these instruments is reasonable estimate of fair value

Subordinated Debt The carrying value of these instruments is reasonable estimate of fair value

The carrying values and estimated fair values of the Companys financial instruments at December 31 2008 and 2007 are

shown in the following table

Carrying Estimated

Amount Fair Value

December 31 2008

Financial Assets

Cash and due from banks 5250751 5250751

Federal funds sold 4625000 4625000

Investment securities available for sale 47601552 47601552

Other investments 1805200 1805200

Loans gross 320907156 358708274

Bank-owned life insurance 5437331 5437331
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Financial Liabilities

Demand deposit interest-bearing transaction and savings accounts 53072007 53072007
Certificates of deposit and other time deposits 243571339 244000955

Repurchase agreements 30000000 30000000
FHLB advances 25000000 25000000
Note payable 1570000 1570000
Subordinated debt 4325000 5500000

December 31 2007

Financial Assets

Cash and due from banks 6486676 6486676
Federal funds sold 33665005 33665005
Investment securities available for sale 24844007 24884007
Other investments 446800 446800

Loans gross 302933904 302838045
Bank-owned life insurance 5226806 5226806

Financial Liabilities

Demand deposit interest-bearing transaction and savings accounts 62819326 62819326
Certificates of deposit and other time deposits 264844319 265698742

Repurchase agreements 15000000 15000000

2008 2007

Dollars in thousands Notional Estimated Notional Estimated

Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments

Commitments to extend credit 36260 49343

Standby Letters of Credit 3488 3177

The company adopted Statement No 157 at the beginning of our 2008 fiscal year SFAS No 157 applies to all assets and

liabilities that are being measured and reported on fair value basis SFAS No 157 requires new disclosure that establishes

framework for measuring fair value in GAAP and expands disclosure about fair value measurements This statement

enables the reader of the financial statements to assess the inputs used to develop those measurements by establishing

hierarchy for ranking the quality and reliability of the information used to determine fair values The statement requires that

assets and liabilities carried at fair value will be classified and disclosed in one of the following three categories

Level Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level Observable market based inputs or unobservable inputs that are corroborated by market data

Level Unobservable inputs that are not corroborated by market data

In determining appropriate levels the Company performs detailed analysis of the assets and liabilities that re subject to

SFAS No 157 At each reporting period all assets and liabilities for which the fair value measurement is based on

significant unobservable inputs are classified as Level
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The table below presents the balances of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis by level within the

hierarchy

December 31 2008

Dollars in thousands Total Level Level Level

Investment securities available for sale 47602 47602

Certain assets and liabilities are measured at fair value on nonrecurring basis that is the instruments are not measured at

fair value on an ongoing basis but are subject to fair value adjustments in certain circumstances for example when there is

evidence of impairment The following table presents the assets and liabilities carried on the balance sheet by caption and

by level within the SFAS No 157 valuation hierarchy as described above as of December 31 2008 for which

nonrecurring change in fair value has been recorded during the year ended December 2008

Carrying Value at December 31 2008

Dollars in thousands Total Level Level Level

Impaired Loans 13172 13172

NOTE 24- COMMUNITYSOUTH FINANCIAL CORPORATION PARENT COMPANY ONLY

Presented below are the condensed financial statements for CommunitySouth Financial Corporation Parent Company only

Condensed Balance Sheets

December 31

2008 2007

Assets

Cash 3029319 94125

Investment securities available for sale 100000 100000

Investment in the Bank 1327084 31280850

Other assets 96945 6692

Total assets 34553348 31481667

Liabilities and shareholders equity

Otherliabilities 129871 10531

Other borrowings 1570000

Subordinated debt 4325000

Shareholders equity 28528477 31471136

Total liabilities and shareholders equity 34.553348 31481667
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Condensed Statements of Income

For the
years

ended December 31 2098 and 2007

2008 2007

Income

Expenses 257391 55320

Income loss before income taxes and equity in

undistributed income of the Bank 257391 55320

Equity in undistributed income loss of the Bank 3093100 1623432

Net income loss before taxes 3350491 1568112

Income tax expense benefit

Net income loss 3350491 1568112

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31 2008 and December 31 2007

2008 2007

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income loss 3350491 1568112

Adjustments to reconcile net income loss to net cash

used in by operating activities

Increase in other assets 90253
Stock based compensation 68498 55320

Equity in undistributed income loss of the Bank 2753766 1623432
Change in accumulated other comprehensive income 339334

Increase in other liabilities 119340

Net cash used in operating activities 159806

Cash flows from investing activities

Investments in Bank subsidiary 2800000 900000
Net cash used in investing activities 2800000 900000

Cash flows from financing activities

Subordinated debt issue 4325000
Increase in other borrowings 1570000
Cash paid for fractional shares 5701
Stock options exercised 6400

Net cash provided by financing activities 5895000 699

Net increase decrease in cash 2935194 899301

Cash beginning of year 94.125 993426

Cash end of year 3029319 94125

NOTE 25- SUBSEOUENT EVENT

On February 27 2009 the bank repaid the $1570000 note payable to the Bank of Tennessee
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